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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Peace and Plenty is located on the east side
of Maryland Route 213 1/4 mile south of the
intersection with U.S. Route 301, approximately
three miles south of Centreville.

Peace and Plenty is a large brick house
dating to circa 1774, It is 2 1/2 stories high,
five bays wide, and one room deep, with flush
brick chimneys at either end of the pitched gable
roof. An original brick wing projects from the
east gable wall of the main house. This wing is
two stories high, three bays wide and one room
deep,.with a single brick chimney on the east gable
end of the pitched gable roof.

The front facade of the main house faces
south. The entrance door is located in the center
bay, flanked by two 12/12 windows on each side.
There are five 12/8 windows ranged across the
second story and five three-light cellar windows
in the foundation. Two 6/6 pitched roof dormer
windows on the roof date to the second guarter
of the 19th century.

The brickwork is finely laid in Flemish bond

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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with tooléd "grapevine; joints and queen closers
above a molded water table and three—course bond
foundation. The water table and foundation have been
whitewashed, a common decorative touch of the 19th
century. ‘A four-course Flemish bond belt course
étretches across the facade between the first and
second story, stopping flush with the corners.
Splayed wood lintels above each window are rusticated
to imitate stone and are painted White,  Thé'wihgows
are set in heavy wood frames: moiéed backband £rim
survives on the first floor QinéoWs, ichegedAwood
shutters were installed in the latter éért.of~£he 19th
- century. The original front door was.réplaéédiin the
second quafter éf the 19th century‘with;a Sixepanel
door with ogee/astragal panel molds. The dooriénd
four-light transom are framed with a GreéﬁiRevival
surround that includes a reeded Gfeek architrave with
bullseye corner blocks, and simple pilasters with
m&ided caps supporting a heavily molded hood.‘ The
most significant woodwork on the facade, however, is
the cornice. This consisﬁs of a boxed eave.with large
scrolled déntil biocks below the soffit and a complex

_ bed mold with smaller dentil course., The existing
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crown mo}d is quite plain and is presumably a replace-
ment. The cornice returns at eéch end against the
gable wall. The roof is covered with asphault shingles.
A one story 19th century porch with a hip roof protects
. the center three bayé, replacing an earlier (presumably
6riginal) entrance porch in the center bay. One brick
pier survives from the earlier porch, concealed by

the existing porch.‘

The west gable wall faces Route 213. There are
two 9/9 windows flanking the flush center chimney on
the first floor, two 9/6 windows on the second floor,
and two 4/2 windows in the upper gable. The first
and second/story prickwork is laid in Flemish bong,
the foundation and upper gable in three-course bond.
The molded waﬁer table is carried across the gable
wall, and a three-course belt course is carried
across the top of the second story between the cornice
returns. The gable eaves are boxed in and simply
trimmed.

The rear facade faces north toward U:s. Route
301. The fenestration is virtually identical to the
front facade except that the center entrance lacks
a transom and the door surround is much simpler.

The paneled door, paneled soffit and jambs and architrave
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all date to the second quarter of the 19th century.
The west cellar window has been bricked up and the
bulkhead cellar entrance has been shifted from the right
of-thg door to the left of the door. The brickwork
matches the front facade as well., The rusticated
lintels have been replaced in the east and west bays
on the first story. A one story entrance porch in the
center bay probably dates to the early 20th century.

The east gable wall -is almést entirely covered
by the two story brick wing. The only bpeniﬁgs in
this wall are a pair of 4/2 windbké in the ﬁppef
gable. The brickwork is threé—éourse Eoﬁa'with thé‘
water table réturned against the wing éndwthe belt
.course omitted. |

The south facade of the wiﬁg is set béc% approxij
mately 2 1/2 feet from the front bf the main héusé.
The wing is two stories high but with lowér'ceiling
heights, so the rooms are considerably lower than
the main house. There is a door in the center bay on
the first floor flanked by single 9/6 windows on each
side, ‘Three 6/6 windows are ranged across the second
story. The brickwork is laid in Flemish bond above a
molded water table and three-course bond foundation.
A three-course flémish bond belt course is carried the

length of the facade but does not turn the corner.
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The windows are set in beaded wood frames and have

Splayed brick jack ‘arch lintels. The eave is boxed

in and trimmed with a plaln crown mold and a handsome
complex bed mold; the roof is asphault shingle.
On the east gable wall of the wing, the chimney

projects out approximately nine inches from the wall

surface. It shoulders in above the first story fire-

place‘and corbels back in flush with the‘upper gable.
The only‘openihgs in this wall are a pair 6f;small,
boarded-up windows flanking the chimney in thé.u?pefi
gable. The brickwork is laid in three-course bond
above a molded water table and three-course bond
foundation. The eaves are trimmed with wide réke-
boards and plain crownmold. The chimney shaft has
been.rebuilt above the ridge.

The rear facade of the wing is set back approxi-
mately 2.1/2 feet from the north facade of the main
house, The fenestration and corﬁice match the front
facade: the brickwork is laid in three-course bond
with molded water table and three-course belt course,

The interior of the main house consists of a

center passage plan with a single room on either side

of the center stair passage. The stair rises against

-

B
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the east wall of the passage to a landing againsf

.. the north wall, then turns 90 degrees and rises to a

second landing, turns 90 degrees again and continues

to the second story. It is a pariiéularly handsone

open-string stair with turned newel posts, a molded

continuous, ramped rail, and delicately turned newels.
The newels, rail and balusters are all walnut. The
stair ends are decoréted with solid scrdiled,brackets.
and the carriage piece is trimmed with a é&ﬁb;éx R
molding. The area below the carriage is panelédf. , :
with a single large triangular panel. A one-éanel
door under the landing opens into a closet'under the
stair. This door is hung on H-L hinges and is fitted
with;a large wood box lock. The front and rear

doors and architrave trim are not original. The front
door is an eight panel door with fielded panels and
ogee/astragal panel molds tybital of the late Federal
and early Greek Revival period.v The architrave trim
consists of a beaded and rabbeted fascia and én ogee/
astragal backband. The rear door is similar but with

a six-panel door fitted with a large brass box lock,

in contrast to the iron box lock on the front door.

The interior doors to the flanking rooms ‘have paneled
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soffits and jambs and fielded six-panel doors fitted

.with metal box locks. These "Carpenter" type locks

have brass knobs and arellabeled "Warfanteleo. 4440

(west) and “Improved Rim Lock No. 60" (east). The

architrave trim consists of a beaded and rabbeted

fascia with large ogee backband. Other original

trim includes the molded baseboard and a bold two-

piece chairrail.
The west room is the more formal of the first

floor chambers. The fireplace is centered on thé west

gable wall, flanked by one 9/9 window on each side.

The mantel is a large and quite elaborate surround.
The opening is framed.with a beaded and rabbeted
fascia and ogee backband, flanked by reeded pilasters
suppérting reedea sideblocks and a complex shelf,

The reeded sideblock motif is repeated in the form of
five fretwork blocks ranged'across the frieze. The
shelf consists of a Greek ogee hosing similar to the
later mantels on the second floor and is a later
alteration. The moldings below the shelf are original

and include a dentil cburse, carved cable molding, and

-bead-and-reel. The windows are set in splayed openings

with paneled soffits and jambs and crossetted architrave

<.
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. trim. consisting of a broken-field fascia and bold,

complex backband. A complex dentil-course cornice

encircles the room. The dentil-course detail is

repeated in the chairrail, an extremely unusual

feature. The area below the chairrail is paneled.

- Other original trim includes the crossetted door

architrave and the molded baseboard.

The east room is slightly smaller than the west
room. The fireplace 'is centered on the east gable
wall with a door to the right opening into”tﬁe-wing.
The mantel in this room is less.elabcrate, éthi$tingf
of a board surround with a broken-field fascia aﬁd‘
crossetted ogee backband framing the opening below
plain sideblocks and frieze and a complex molded shelf.
The windows in this room are also sét in splayed
and paneled feveals but they terminate in simple
window seats and do not extend to floor level. The
window and door architrave trim is not crossetted
and consists of a broken-field fascia and bold ogee
backband. A complex, dentil—céurse cornice encircles
the room; the chairfail is molded but lacks a dentil
course. The ﬁoided baseboard also survives in this
room, |

The_center passage plan is repeated on the second

floor with the south end of the passage partitioned
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to form an original unheated chamber. The stair
continues up to the third floor but with a simpler

balustrade. The turned newels and balusters are

.‘omitted in favor of plain square pieces_and-the rail

is interrupted at each newel. Thélstair also substitutes
three winder stéps for the first-landiﬁg. Original
trim in the stair passage includes the beaded baseboard
and the érchitrave trim, which consists of a‘beaded
andbrabbeted fascia and an ogee backband. The passage
chamber has been adapted for a modern bath.. .

| The west chamber is the largest of the second floor
rooms. The fireplace on. the west gaﬁle wall‘is fittéd
with a small but handsome surround. A broken—field
fascia and ovolo backband frame the opening; six feeded
blocks are'ranged acroés the frieze below a molded
shelf with dentil course. The window reveals are
splayed but not paneled: the crossetted architrave
trim matches the passage. A two-piece chairrail and
molded baséboard encircle the rbom. A small closet
has been inserted in the northeast corner of the
room, |

In the smaller chamber to the east, the fireplace

‘on the east gable wall is flanked by a built-in

four-door cupboard to the left and a door to the right
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that opens onto a set of steps leading do@n to the
second stdry of the wing.

The third stofy if finished with modern drywall
‘that has never been spackled. The flooring and a
rough-Sawn board partition are original, however.

The door at the top of the stairs is constructed of
beaded vertical boards and beveled battens and is‘hung
on very large wrought strap hinges. The door in the
partition is constructed of plain vertical boards

and plain pattens and is hung on H-L hinges.

A ladder near the east end of the attic iéaéé gp:
through a crawl space above the collar beams to a |
hatch in the roof. This ladder was rebuilt, probably
in the second quarter_of the 19th century, reusing
one of the original stringers. The roof is constructed
of hewn and §it—sawn common rafters set at a 35 degree
pitch. The rafters are joined at the ridge with a
pégged mortise-and-tenon joint. Collar beams are
half-dovetailed into each rafter pair and are nailed
with wrought nails. The rafter pairs are arranged
to include both seté of dormers, so these are
presumably an.oéiginal ?eature and were rebuilt in
the 19th century.

The cellar is divided into three rooms by the

brick walls of the ‘passage. The east room has a
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brick paved floor and had plastered walls and white-
washed, exposed-ceiling joists. Riven plaster lathing
was nailed to the bottom of the first story flooring
- and was plastered, leaving the joists exposed. A
modern composition board ceiling -has been inserted.
The large arched chimney base in this foom has been
adapted for a furnace. A small window open;pg in the
west wall of this room, opening into the center room,
is fitted with a heavy wood.frame with riven horizontal
laths nailed to the frame. The door betweén“these two
rooms is framed with a heavy, beaded surround and
was originally secured with a door hung on H or'H—L
.hinges. The center and west rooms are whitewashed
but not plastered. The west chimney rests on an
arched base, -

;The wing is divided into two rooms on each floor.
On the first floor, the larger room to tﬁe east is the
kitchen and a smaller room to the west serves as an
informal dining room but probably originally was both
service and secondary dining. ‘The original kitchen
fireplace is blocked up and a steep ladder stair in
the northeast corner has been blocked off and partially
removed. An original fouf—door cupboard is built
into the corner to the right of the fireplace. The

-

west room was originally heated by a fireplace on the
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west wall but this has been blocked up. A steep

winder stair in the northeast corner leads up to the

. second story. Eafly trim in this room includes the

molded window frames énd a two-piece“chairiail.

The second floor is also diVIded‘into two rooms.
The east rooﬁ was originally seéregated from the west
room and could only be reached from the kitchen. When
the ladder stair in the kitchen was blocked, a door was»
cut ihrough into the west room. The east room was

not heated, Original trim on the second £loor includes

molded window trim and beaded baseboard in_boih:toods

. and a two-piece chairrail and late Federal or eariy

Greek Revival mantel in the west room.

Granary/Crib
- To the northeast of the house is a combined granary
and double crib., The building measures 24 feet wide
and 32 feet long with the central portion utilized as
a granary and 8 by 24 foot cr;bs to east and west.
This building evidently was originally constructed in
the early 19th century utilizing hewn and pit sawn
heavy timber framing ;ndAdouble;struck machine nails.,.
It was later rebuilt utilizing much of the original,

frame. .
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Cemetery

A small burial ground is located in the field

to the south of the house and farmyard. Four head-

- stones remain in the cemetery, all dating to 1850-52.

These include Carrie N. Harper (died September 2,
1850) and three children of Stephen L. Wright, all of
whom died in the summer of 1852. The latter, three

stones are signed by the maker: "Baughman, Balto."




1 SIGNIFICANCE WA-99

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE ---CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
~~PREHISTORIC ~ _ARCHEULOGY-PREHISTORIC  _.COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ~ _RELIGION
100-1489 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —tlaw —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS —LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
—1600-1688 Z_ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SGCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
% 1700-1799 —ART —_ENGINEERING _MmusicC —-THEATER
#.1800-1899 —COMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
% 1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY -—POLITICS/GDOVERNMENT —OTHER (SPECIFY}
_INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES ' BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Peace and Plenty is one of the largest and
most carefully preserved 18th century houses in
Queen Anne's County. Constructed circa 1774, it
is typical of the late Georgian, high-style country
house in this region. The 2 1/2 story, five bay
form and center passage plan are typical of a
broad range of houses from all but the poorest
class. The grand scale, the two story wing and
the precise execution, however, all separate this
house from smallér and simpler éxamples found
throughout the Tidewater. The precise Flemish
bond brickwork, molded water table and decorative
belt courses are comparaéle fo contemporary houses
in Chestertown and Annapolis. The rusticated
wood lintels, molded window frames and elaborate
dentil block cornice are all evidence of the
comfortable economic position of the builder.

The interior is equally rich in original detail,

éONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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including a handsome open-string stair, several fine

mantels, richly decorated interior cornices, and an

unusual dentil-course chairrail. Although the interior

"of the wing has been renovated to some extent, the

evidence of segregated second story se?vice quarters
remains clearly evident,

Also worthy of note is a combined granary and
crib constructed in the ear;y 19th century and rebuilt
in the post-Civil War period, and a small family

cemetery with four stones dating to 1850-52.
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Peace and Plenty
Centreville vicinity
Orlando Ridout V 1981
South (front) facade
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QA-99 Peace and Plenty
Centreville vicinity
Orlando Ridout V 1981
North facade
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QA-99 Peace and Plenty
Centreville vicinity
Orlando Ridout V 1981
View from Northeast
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Peace and Plenty
Centreville vicinity
Orlando Ridout V 1981
Granary, from northeast
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Peace and Plenty
Centreville vicinity
Orlando Ridout V 1981
Granary, from southwest
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